
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
****SMALL COURT ROOM – 2ND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
May 1, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 4 – GERALD STUNKEL      

DISTRICT 5  - STEVEN LEDFORD     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 3 
         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
            

 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• April 3, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     67408 - 67617 
  

VI.   Public Hearing  
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  
 

1. A Public Hearing and recommendation by the Planning Board will be held for a Residential 
Plat located off of Cook Road, Map & Parcel 026 054 002.  The request is to approve the 
division of land for a total of 19 lots on 288.707 acres.  The property is zoned AG and the lots 
will abut existing road frontage. 

2. A Public Hearing and recommendation by the Planning Board will be held for a Residential 
Plat, Hardy Creek Estates, located off of Millen Road, Map & Parcel 026 054 004.  The 
request is to approve the division of land for a total of 11 lots on 152.06 acres. The property 
is zoned AG and the lots will abut existing road frontage. 
 

3. A Public Hearing and recommendation by the Planning Board will be held for an 
Industrial/Commercial Preliminary Plat located at the NNW intersection of Hwy 83 S and 
Edwards Road, Map & Parcel 040 010X and 039A 029.  The request is for a total of 10 lots 
on 35.72 acres. 

4. Consideration of a Moratorium for all Rezoning requests until such time as the 
Comprehensive Land Use Map is approved which is due on or before October 31, 2023. 



XIII. Executive Session 
 

 
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.  
  

 
 
 
The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 
for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  
be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

VIX. County Commissioner Items  
 

X.   Regular Agenda  

Business Items: 
1. RES23-001 – Approval for an Agricultural Plat that has more than 3 lots – Cook Road 
2. RES23-002 – Approval for an Agricultural Plat that has more than 3 lots – Millen Road 
3. PPT23-001 – Approval for Preliminary Plat for AC Business Park 
4. Discussion/consideration of enacting a Moratorium on the acceptance of Rezoning requests until the 

Future Land Use Map and Comp Plan are updated 
5. Sheriff’s Office/Jail Project – Proposals for Construction Materials Testing and Special Inspection 

Services 
6. GDOT Low Impact Bridge Program – Application for Cook Rd Bridge, River Rd Bridge and Guy Jones 

Rd Bridge  
7. Pittman Construction Contract Modification – Commercial Asphalt Patching on County Line Rd and 

Hodges Farm Rd 
8. Azalea Regional Library – Impact Fee 
9. Intergovernmental Agreement with City of Monticello – Sands Drive Park Improvements 
10. Jasper County Fire Rescue is requesting to purchase a new vehicle to replace the current 2008 Ford 

F150 single cab truck with a truck with increased capabilities for mission critical operations. 
11. Jasper County Fire Rescue is requesting to purchase a new 60” cut commercial grade lawn mower to 

maintain yards of our Fire Stations. 
12. FY 2023 3rd Quarter Financial Report 
13. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings As Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 
 
 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

 

XIV. Adjournment  

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  May1, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
 
 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 
• April 3, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve minutes for:  
 

• April 3, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes April 3, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
April 3, 2023 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
6:00 P.M. 

 
Chairman Jernigan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Don Jernigan, Chairman; Sheila Jones, Vice-Chairman; Bruce Henry; Gerald Stunkel; 
and Steven Ledford.  
 
Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sharon Robinson, Administrative Services Director, Larissa Ruark, Chief 
Accounting Officer, and Barry Fleming, Fleming Nelson Attorney Group 

Pledge of Allegiance: 
Invocation:  Commissioner Bruce Henry, District 2. 
 
Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Stunkel motioned to add JDA Board appointment to the agenda. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel Motioned to approve the agenda as amended. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda:  
Commissioner Henry motioned to update the meeting minutes for March 6, 2023 to reflect that Chairman 
Jernigan called the meeting to order; and approve Work Session Minutes of February 27, 2023. Commissioner 
Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.      
  

• February 27, 2023- Work Session Minutes  
• March 6, 2023- Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
 Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Check #s 67164-67407. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Public Hearings:  None 
 
Presentations/Delegations- Jennifer Lassen, Executive Director- Monticello/Jasper County Chamber of 
Commerce- Jennifer Lassen stood before the board to introduce herself as the new Executive Director of the 
Chamber of Commerce.  
 
Citizens Comments: 

• Jason Bunn (Bailey Road) – Mr. Bunn asked what are we doing to protect our kids in Jasper County. 
• John Henderson (Herds Creek Road) - Mr. Henderson complimented the Public Works Department & 

Commissioner Ledford for work that they completed on Herds Creek.   
• David Thompson (Forsyth Street) - Mr. Thompson spoke about the scenic byways and ask that the 

Scenic Byway Commission of 1992 be reactivated.  
• James Belcher (Hillsboro) –Mr. Belcher thanked the Board of Commissioner for backing and 

participating in the Jasper County Day of Kindness.  
 
County Commissioner’s Items 
Commissioner Ledford- Commissioner Ledford complimented the Public Works department for their hard work 
during recent rains.  
Commissioner Stunkel- None 
Commissioner Jernigan- None 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes April 3, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

 
Commissioner Jones- Commissioner Jones asked for an update on Greer Road.  
  
Chairman Henry- Commissioner Henry stated that the land has been purchased and ground breaking for the 
Food Bank will be this week.  
 
Business Items:  
Item 1: Jasper County Public Facilities Authority- Board:   Mr. James Thiele stood before the PFA board. 
He stated that it is a balance between supporting his county and using his business background to help the 
county.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to re-appoint James Thiele to the Public Facilities Authority Board. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Bill Nash stood before the board to express why he should be reappointed to the PFA Board. He stated that 
they initially spent months figuring out who they were, what to do and how to do it. He feels like he has been 
instrumental.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to re-appoint Bill Nash to the Public Facilities Authority Board. Commissioner 
Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Howard Fore expressed his interest in being appointed to the PFA Board. He stated that we need to do 
something to help the children in the county.  
 
Commissioner Jones motioned to appoint Mr. Howard Fore to the Public Facilities Authority Board. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jernigan stated that he would like to continue to serve as the Board of Commissioner Representative 
on PFA board.  
 
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to appoint Commissioner Jernigan as the Board of Commissioners 
Representative to the Public Facilities Authority Board. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed 4-0 
(Commissioner Jernigan abstained). 
 
Item 1a: JDA Board Appointment: Commissioner Henry motioned to reappoint Commissioner Stunkel as the 
representative from the Jasper County Board of Commissioners to the JDA Board. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded the motion, passed 4-0 (Commissioner Stunkel abstained).   
 
Item 2:  NEGRC Area on Aging 2023 American Rescue Plan (ARPA) Contract- Senior Center:  Senior 
Center Director Brenda Jacobs explained that the Senior Center has received ARPA funds.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to authorize chairman Jernigan to sign the NEGRC ARPA contract to receive 
the ARPA Funds. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, pass unanimously.  
 
Item 3: Senior Center 2009 Ford E-350 Van Replacement Vehicle: Ms. Jacobs explained that it is hard for them to find 
a new van or bus. They are selling quickly each time they find one. She advised of the vehicles that are available.  
 
The commissioners advised Ms. Jacobs to not compromise on the things that they need.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to allow the Senior Center staff to put down $3000 to hold the vehicle once they find it 
to give our mechanic time to check it out. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the motion, passed unanimously.   
  
Commissioner Stunkel motioned to authorize the purchase of 2023 passenger bus in the amount of $116,100 to be paid 
with ARPA funds. Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes April 3, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

 
Item 4: Participation Forms for the New National Opioid Settlements:  Mr. Benton stated that the county 
chose to participate in the National Opioid Program Settlements. The county has received money.  
 
Mr. Fleming (interim county attorney) stated that this decision should be easier than the initial one. These cases 
are already settled it is just a matter of where the county wants to receive funds from the settlement.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to direct the chairman to execute the requisite Participation Forms for Teva, 
Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart (collectively the “New Opioid Settlements”) prior to the April 18, 
2023 deadline. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 5: Recreation Department Football Fields Discussion: Mr. Benton stated that staff is seeking approval 
of the board to have conversation with the new owners of Rose Bowl Field (Monticello Baptist Church) to 
discuss short term usage of the field for our football program. We would ask the Board of Education for the use 
of the parking lot behind Thomas Person’s Hall.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to authorize Staff to meet with the Monticello Baptist Church to discuss short 
term usage of Rose Bowl Field and to meet with the Jasper County Board of Education to discuss short term 
usage of the parking lot behind Thomas Persons Hall for the purpose of providing additional capacity for 
County Recreation Football Program activities; passed unanimously. Commissioner Stunkel seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 6: Landfill Operations Discussion: Mr. Benton stated that we been running a Certified Construction & 
Demolition Landfill since 2010.  Historically EPD has allowed non organic items to be placed in the landfill. 
They have recently come up with tighter enforcement of their own rules of what can be placed in the landfill. 
The Public Works Director and County Manager are looking into what it is going to take to modify operations.  
For this reason Staff recommends delaying the free month of dumping.  
 
Chairman Jernigan stated that he has been asked several times about the free dump month. He stated that a 
committed was formed last year to discuss a way that we can still do the free dump. It would be set up so that 
residents will get one free dump per year through a voucher program.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Commissioner Jernigan motioned to have the Landfill committee to meet and discuss feasibility for one free 
dump per address in the county for the year and create vouchers. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, 
passed unanimously. 
  
Item 7: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed: The commissioners decided that the 
current Work Sessions for the budget meetings are sufficient. They changed the May 5th Work Session to a 
Called Meeting.  
 
County Attorney Items: None  
 
County Manager Update: Mike Benton gave an updated of the numbers for building permits for the current 
year in comparison to the past year. The Jackson Lake Road project is scheduled to start in the first week of 
May, weather permitting. Gay Road and Aldridge Road are both still closed due to last weeks’ rain.  The 
groundbreaking ceremony for the Jail and Food Bank are next week.  
 
Executive Session: 
None 
 
Adjourn: Commissioner Stunkel motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 p.m. Commissioner Ledford 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously. 
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes April 3, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman 
 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, Clerk          



 

 
Consent Agenda – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
 
Summary: 
 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve processing of check #’s 67408 - 67617 
  
  



 

 

 

Public Hearing 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  RES23-001 – Approval for an Agricultural Plat that has more than 3 lots 
 
Summary:  A Public Hearing will be held for RES23-001 located off of Cook Road, Map & Parcel 026 054 

002.  The request is to approve the division of land for a total of 19 lots on 288.707 acres.  The 
property is zoned AG and the lots will abut existing road frontage. 

 
 
Background:  The Planning Commission held a public hearing for the request on 04/20/2023. 
 
  
   
 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: N/A 
  



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 1 

JASPER COUNTY 

RESIDENTIAL PLAT PETITION 

Board of Commissioners 

5/01/2023 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 

Case Number:  RES23-001 

Name of Applicant:  Mark Buckland for BRTC Capital, LLC 

 Address of Property: Cook Road, Monticello GA 

Tax Parcel:  026 054 002 (a 288.07-acre portion of the current Tax Parcel) 

District:   3 (Three) 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 

Request:   To subdivide a parcel of land into 19 lots 

 

Applicable Standard: Section 105-161 (Development Regulations) and Section 119-244 

(Zoning Ordinance) 

 

Purpose of Request:  To create lots that allow for both agricultural uses and construction 

of a single-family residence on the lot. 

 

Size of Property:  288.707 acres 

Present Zoning:  AG (Agricultural District) 

 

Present Use:   Undeveloped 

Review Sections:   As per Section 105-161 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, 

such plats shall be reviewed for conformance to this chapter, the 

county zoning ordinance set forth in chapter 119, and other relevant 

regulations and will consider the comments or suggestions of other 

appropriate review agencies, persons, or entities in regard to the plat. 

The planning commission or director of planning will indicate on the 

Residential Subdivision plat, or by a written memorandum attached 

to the Residential Subdivision plat, any comments or suggested 

changes that are necessary to meet the intent of this chapter or to 

serve the best interests of the county. 

    

Comments:   The current Tax Parcel on the Tax Assessor’s QPublic website 

shows a 632+- tract of land (aka parent parcel).  In January of 2023 

the parent parcel divided the tract into 2 tracts: a 288.707-acre tract 

under request to further subdivide into tracts to create new lots under 

the same zoning of Agricultural District and the remaining acre were 

combined with adjoining land under the same ownership.   

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 2 

 

APPLICABLE ORDINANCE SECTIONS (AS AMENDED ON 11/07/2022 & 03/06/2023) 

Section 105-161 - Residential Subdivision Design 

Prior to submitting construction plans for any street, utility, or other site improvements (as 

applicable), the Developer shall submit to the Director of Planning & Zoning to forward for 

review and recommendation by the Planning Commission and review and final decision by the 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners, a Plat showing any combination or subdivision of the 

proposed lot/s prepared in accordance with these Regulations.  
 

1. Pre-application review stage. 

Before the submission of any plats to the director of planning, the developer must 

submit a sketch plat showing the proposed development layout of the subdivision. 

The developer and director of planning should informally discuss what this chapter 

requires and what the developer proposes to do. This will assist the developer in 

preparing a residential subdivision plat that meet from the very beginning the intent 

and standards specified by this chapter so as to reduce undue time and expense in 

preparing plans that cannot be approved by the planning commission. 
 

2. Application Requirements: 

A. Submit seven (7) paper copies and one (1) digital copy of the Plat and 

supporting data.  
 

The Plat shall meet the minimum standards for plat preparation including, but 

not limited, to:  

1. General  

a. Name, address, and phone number of designer of subdivision  

    plat.  

b. Name, address, and phone number of developer of parcel.  

c. Date of plat preparation with space for revision dates.  

d. North point, identified as magnetic, true or grid. 

e. Minimum Graphic scale of one (1) inch equals 200 feet.  

f. Appropriate legend of symbols used on plat.  

g. List any conditions of zoning, rezoning, variance and date of  

    approval, if applicable.  

h. Certificates of approval. The following certificates shall be 

inscribed on the residential subdivision plat: 

(1) Certificate of approval of the preliminary plat by the 

planning commission. 

(2) Signed seal of a state-registered land surveyor, certified 

landscape architect or state professional engineer. 

(3) Certificate of approval of the preliminary plat by the county 

health department. 

(4) Owner's certificate stating property ownership, consenting 

to development, and that all appropriate taxes have been paid. 

   

2. Existing Conditions 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 3 

a. Zoning district of land to be subdivided and zoning  

    classification of adjoining properties. 

b. Exact boundary lines of the tract indicated by a heavy line  

    giving lengths and bearings. The boundary lines should  

    include the entire tract to be developed. Provide date and  

    source of survey. 

c. Location map showing the parent parcel in relation to the  

   surrounding area at a minimum scale of one inch to 2,000  

   feet. Include well-known landmarks such as railroads,  

   highways, bridges, creeks, etc. and city and/or county  

   jurisdictional boundaries and land lot lines, if applicable. 

d. Location of natural features including streams and  

   watercourses with direction of flow on the proposed project. 

e. Location and/or size of existing cultural features on or  

    adjacent to the proposed subdivision. 

f. Limits of 100-year floodplain. If none, note indicating such     

   with data source and date. 

g. Location and square footage of wetland areas. 

h. Note as to provision of water supply and sewer disposal. 

i. Existing sewers, water mains, drains, culverts, and other  

   underground facilities or utilities within easements or rights- 

   of-way on or within 300 feet of the tract to be subdivided, as  

   relevant. 

j. Adjoining property information, lot arrangement and/or  

   adjoining property owners’ names, rights-of-way and  

   easements within 300 feet of subdivision. 

k. Total acreage, minimum dwelling size and minimum lot size  

   of project. 
 

B. Residential Subdivisions on State Routes require GDOT comments to be 

submitted to the Planning & Zoning Department along with the Residential 

Subdivision (aka Final) Plat.  
 

C. A letter requesting review and approval of a Residential Subdivision plat 

and giving the name and address of a person to whom the notice of hearing 

and action on the Residential Subdivision plat is to be sent. 
 

D. Official date of submission. The official date of submission of the 

Residential Subdivision plat will be the date of the next regularly scheduled 

monthly meeting of the planning commission that is more than 60 days 

following proper Residential Subdivision plat submittal to the director of 

planning. 
 

E. The planning commission will review the Residential Subdivision plat for 

conformance to this chapter, the county zoning ordinance set forth in chapter 

119, and other relevant regulations and will consider the comments or 

suggestions of other appropriate review agencies, persons, or entities in regard 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 4 

to the plat. The planning commission or director of planning will indicate on 

the Residential Subdivision plat, or by a written memorandum attached to the 

Residential Subdivision plat, any comments or suggested changes that are 

necessary to meet the intent of this chapter or to serve the best interests of the 

county. 
 

F. Public hearing. Before acting on the Residential Subdivision plat, the 

planning commission will hear public input on the plat. Notice of the hearing 

must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county at least 

15 days before the hearing. 
 

G. Action of the Board of Commissioners. No more than 60 days after the 

official date of submission of the Residential Subdivision plat, the Board of 

Commissioners will either approve the plat, conditionally approve the plat 

(noting the conditions of approval on the plat), disapprove the plat, or table the 

plat for further consideration. Action may be taken on the entire Residential 

Subdivision plat or any portion of it. 

 

H. Failure of Board of Commissioners to act. If the Board of Commissioners 

fails to act within 90 days of the official date of submission of the Residential 

Subdivision plat, the plat will be deemed automatically approved by the Board 

of Commissioners. 
 

3. Approval of a Residential Subdivision Plat shall be deemed an expression of 

approval of the layout submitted, pending fulfillment of the requirements of these 

Regulations and the conditions of the Residential Plat, if any.  
 

4. If the Residential Subdivision Plat is not recorded within 6 months of approval, 

the approval shall expire, unless a request for an extension of time has been submitted 

to and is subsequently approved by the Planning Commission in a public hearing. 

 

 
Sec. 119-244. - Development standards—Agriculture and residential districts.  

Item  AG  R-R  RES 

Minimum heated floor area per dwelling unit  1,200 sf  1,200 sf  1,800 sf 

Minimum lot area without water or sewer  5 acres  3 acres  2 acres 

Minimum lot area with public/private water  5 acres  3 acres  2 acres 

Minimum lot area with public/private water and sewer  5 acres  3 acres  2 acres 

Minimum lot width  200 ft.  200 ft.  125 ft. 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 5 

Minimum road frontage  200 ft.  200 ft.  125 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback arterial road  80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback major collector  80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback minor collector  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback local roads  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 

Minimum side yard  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 

Minimum rear yard  50 ft.  50 ft.  30 ft. 

Compliance with architectural standards required?  No  No  No 

       ;le=2;NA — Not allowed  
;le=2;*Rear yards that adjoin Jackson Lake will be measured from Georgia Power easement: 525 

feet sea level plus 50 feet  
;le=2;**Water and sewage must meet approval of the county health department  

 

ZONING MAP 
 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 6 

 

 

APPLICANT’S INFO 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 7 

 
 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 8 

 
 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 9 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 10 

 

 

ORIGINAL TRACT AS CURRENTLY SHOWN ON THE TAX WEBSITE 

*THE TRACT HAS BEEN SUBDIVIDE FROM THE ORIGINAL 632.23 ACRES TO 

CREATE A 288.07 ACRE TRACT ON THE SOUTHERN PORTION OF THE LOT WHICH 

IS WHAT IS UNDER REQUEST IN THIS PETITION  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 11 

 

 

 

ORIGINAL SURVEY FROM 2001 PRIOR TO THE TRACT BEING SUBDIVIDED 

 

 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 12 

 

 

 

CURRENT RECORDED PLAT OF THE SOUTHERN PORTION OF THE ORIGINAL 

TRACT WHICH IS CURRENT 288.07 ACRES UNDER REQUEST 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 13 

 

 



RES23-001 

Board of Commissioners 5-01-2023 

 14 

NEW LOT CONFIGURATION 

 



 

 

Public Hearing 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  RES23-002 – Approval for an Agricultural Plat that has more than 3 lots 
 
Summary:  A Public Hearing will be held for RES23-002, Hardy Creek Estates, located off of Millen Road, 

Map & Parcel 026 054 004.  The request is to approve the division of land for a total of 11 lots 
on 152.06 acres. The property is zoned AG and the lots will abut existing road frontage. 

 
 
Background:  The Planning Commission held a public hearing for the request on 04/20/2023. 
 
  
   
 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: N/A 
 
 
  



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
1 

JASPER COUNTY 

RESIDENTIAL PLAT PETITION 

Board of Commissioners 

5/01/2023 

 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 

Case Number:  RES23-002 

Name of Applicant:  Joe Stockdale 

Address of Property:             Millen Road  

Tax Parcel:  026 054 004 

District:   3 (Three) 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 

Request:   To subdivide a parcel of land into 11 lots to be known as Hardy 

Creek Estates. 

 

Applicable Standard: Section 105-161 (Development Regulations) and Section 119-244 

(Zoning Ordinance) 

 

Purpose of Request:  To create lots that allows for both agricultural uses and construction 

of a single-family residence on the lot. 

 

Size of Property:  152.06 acres 

Present Zoning:  AG (Agricultural District) 

 

Present Use:   Undeveloped 

Review Sections:   As per Section 105-161 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, 

such plats shall be reviewed for conformance to this chapter, the 

county zoning ordinance set forth in chapter 119, and other relevant 

regulations and will consider the comments or suggestions of other 

appropriate review agencies, persons, or entities in regard to the plat. 

The planning commission or director of planning will indicate on the 

Residential Subdivision plat, or by a written memorandum attached 

to the Residential Subdivision plat, any comments or suggested 

changes that are necessary to meet the intent of this chapter or to 

serve the best interests of the county. 

    

 

Comments:   The lot is an existing lot of record of 152.06 acres.  The request is to 

create a total of 11 lots under the current zoning designation of AG 

(Agricultural).  
 

 

 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
2 

APPLICABLE ORDINANCE SECTIONS (AS AMENDED ON 11/07/2022 & 03/06/2023) 

Section 105-161 - Residential Subdivision Design 

Prior to submitting construction plans for any street, utility, or other site improvements (as 

applicable), the Developer shall submit to the Director of Planning & Zoning to forward for 

review and recommendation by the Planning Commission and review and final decision by the 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners, a Plat showing any combination or subdivision of the 

proposed lot/s prepared in accordance with these Regulations.  
 

1. Pre-application review stage. 

Before the submission of any plats to the director of planning, the developer must 

submit a sketch plat showing the proposed development layout of the subdivision. 

The developer and director of planning should informally discuss what this chapter 

requires and what the developer proposes to do. This will assist the developer in 

preparing a residential subdivision plat that meet from the very beginning the intent 

and standards specified by this chapter so as to reduce undue time and expense in 

preparing plans that cannot be approved by the planning commission. 
 

2. Application Requirements: 

A. Submit seven (7) paper copies and one (1) digital copy of the Plat and 

supporting data.  
 

The Plat shall meet the minimum standards for plat preparation including, but 

not limited, to:  

1. General  

a. Name, address, and phone number of designer of subdivision  

    plat.  

b. Name, address, and phone number of developer of parcel.  

c. Date of plat preparation with space for revision dates.  

d. North point, identified as magnetic, true or grid. 

e. Minimum Graphic scale of one (1) inch equals 200 feet.  

f. Appropriate legend of symbols used on plat.  

g. List any conditions of zoning, rezoning, variance and date of  

    approval, if applicable.  

h. Certificates of approval. The following certificates shall be 

inscribed on the residential subdivision plat: 

(1) Certificate of approval of the preliminary plat by the 

planning commission. 

(2) Signed seal of a state-registered land surveyor, certified 

landscape architect or state professional engineer. 

(3) Certificate of approval of the preliminary plat by the county 

health department. 

(4) Owner's certificate stating property ownership, consenting 

to development, and that all appropriate taxes have been paid. 

   

2. Existing Conditions 

a. Zoning district of land to be subdivided and zoning  

    classification of adjoining properties. 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
3 

b. Exact boundary lines of the tract indicated by a heavy line  

    giving lengths and bearings. The boundary lines should  

    include the entire tract to be developed. Provide date and  

    source of survey. 

c. Location map showing the parent parcel in relation to the  

   surrounding area at a minimum scale of one inch to 2,000  

   feet. Include well-known landmarks such as railroads,  

   highways, bridges, creeks, etc. and city and/or county  

   jurisdictional boundaries and land lot lines, if applicable. 

d. Location of natural features including streams and  

   watercourses with direction of flow on the proposed project. 

e. Location and/or size of existing cultural features on or  

    adjacent to the proposed subdivision. 

f. Limits of 100-year floodplain. If none, note indicating such     

   with data source and date. 

g. Location and square footage of wetland areas. 

h. Note as to provision of water supply and sewer disposal. 

i. Existing sewers, water mains, drains, culverts, and other  

   underground facilities or utilities within easements or rights- 

   of-way on or within 300 feet of the tract to be subdivided, as  

   relevant. 

j. Adjoining property information, lot arrangement and/or  

   adjoining property owners’ names, rights-of-way and  

   easements within 300 feet of subdivision. 

k. Total acreage, minimum dwelling size and minimum lot size  

   of project. 
 

B. Residential Subdivisions on State Routes require GDOT comments to be 

submitted to the Planning & Zoning Department along with the Residential 

Subdivision (aka Final) Plat.  
 

C. A letter requesting review and approval of a Residential Subdivision plat 

and giving the name and address of a person to whom the notice of hearing 

and action on the Residential Subdivision plat is to be sent. 
 

D. Official date of submission. The official date of submission of the 

Residential Subdivision plat will be the date of the next regularly scheduled 

monthly meeting of the planning commission that is more than 60 days 

following proper Residential Subdivision plat submittal to the director of 

planning. 
 

E. The planning commission will review the Residential Subdivision plat for 

conformance to this chapter, the county zoning ordinance set forth in chapter 

119, and other relevant regulations and will consider the comments or 

suggestions of other appropriate review agencies, persons, or entities in regard 

to the plat. The planning commission or director of planning will indicate on 

the Residential Subdivision plat, or by a written memorandum attached to the 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
4 

Residential Subdivision plat, any comments or suggested changes that are 

necessary to meet the intent of this chapter or to serve the best interests of the 

county. 
 

F. Public hearing. Before acting on the Residential Subdivision plat, the 

planning commission will hear public input on the plat. Notice of the hearing 

must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county at least 

15 days before the hearing. 
 

G. Action of the Board of Commissioners. No more than 60 days after the 

official date of submission of the Residential Subdivision plat, the Board of 

Commissioners will either approve the plat, conditionally approve the plat 

(noting the conditions of approval on the plat), disapprove the plat, or table the 

plat for further consideration. Action may be taken on the entire Residential 

Subdivision plat or any portion of it. 

 

H. Failure of Board of Commissioners to act. If the Board of Commissioners 

fails to act within 90 days of the official date of submission of the Residential 

Subdivision plat, the plat will be deemed automatically approved by the Board 

of Commissioners. 
 

3. Approval of a Residential Subdivision Plat shall be deemed an expression of 

approval of the layout submitted, pending fulfillment of the requirements of these 

Regulations and the conditions of the Residential Plat, if any.  
 

4. If the Residential Subdivision Plat is not recorded within 6 months of approval, 

the approval shall expire, unless a request for an extension of time has been submitted 

to and is subsequently approved by the Planning Commission in a public hearing. 

 
Sec. 119-244. - Development standards—Agriculture and residential districts.  

Item  AG  R-R  RES 

Minimum heated floor area per dwelling unit  1,200 sf  1,200 sf  1,800 sf 

Minimum lot area without water or sewer  5 acres  3 acres  2 acres 

Minimum lot area with public/private water  5 acres  3 acres  2 acres 

Minimum lot area with public/private water and sewer  5 acres  3 acres  2 acres 

Minimum lot width  200 ft.  200 ft.  125 ft. 

Minimum road frontage  200 ft.  200 ft.  125 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback arterial road  80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft. 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
5 

Minimum front yard/setback major collector  80 ft.  80 ft.  80 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback minor collector  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 

Minimum front yard/setback local roads  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 

Minimum side yard  30 ft.  30 ft.  30 ft. 

Minimum rear yard  50 ft.  50 ft.  30 ft. 

Compliance with architectural standards required?  No  No  No 

       ;le=2;NA — Not allowed  
;le=2;*Rear yards that adjoin Jackson Lake will be measured from Georgia Power easement: 525 

feet sea level plus 50 feet  
;le=2;**Water and sewage must meet approval of the county health department  

 

ZONING MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
6 

APPLICANT’S INFO 

 
 

 

 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
7 

AERIAL MAP 

 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
8 

2001 RECORDED PLAT 

 
 

 

 

 

 



RES23-002 

Board of Commissioners 5/01/2023 
9 

NEW LOT CONFIGURATION 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

Public Hearing 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  PPT23-001 – Approval for Preliminary Plat for AC Business Park 
 
Summary:  A Public Hearing will be held for an Industrial/Commercial Preliminary Plat located at the NNW 

intersection of Hwy 83 S and Edwards Road, Map & Parcel 040 010X and 039A 029.  The 
request is for a total of 10 lots on 35.72 acres. 

 
 
 
Background:  The request is to divide the property into 10 tracts with a new road shown as Southland  

Parkway on the Preliminary Plat.  Southland Parkway will have access on both Edwards Road 
and Hwy 83. 

 
  
   
 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: N/A 
 
 
  



1 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

JASPER COUNTY 

PRELIMINARY PLAT PETITION 

Board of Commissioners 

05/01/2023 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 

Case Number:  PPT23-001 

Name of Applicant:  Brian Cagle 

Address of Property:    Edwards Road & Hwy 83, Monticello GA 

Tax Parcel:  040 010X and 039A 029 

District:   3 (Three) 

 ______________________________________________________________________________  

 

Request:   To subdivide a parcel of land into 10 lots 

 

Applicable Standard: Section 105-164 (Development Regulations) and Section 119-245 

(Zoning Ordinance) 

 

Purpose of Request:  To create lots that allow for manufacturing and business use 

 

Size of Property:  35.72 acres 

Present Zoning:  M (Manufacturing District) 

 

Present Use:   Undeveloped 

Review Sections:   As per Section 105-164 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, 

such plats shall be reviewed for conformance to this chapter, the 

county zoning ordinance set forth in chapter 119, and other relevant 

regulations and will consider the comments or suggestions of other 

appropriate review agencies, persons, or entities in regard to the plat. 

The planning commission or director of planning will indicate on the 

Residential Subdivision plat, or by a written memorandum attached 

to the Residential Subdivision plat, any comments or suggested 

changes that are necessary to meet the intent of this chapter or to 

serve the best interests of the county. 

    

APPLICABLE ORDINANCE SECTIONS (AS AMENDED ON 11/07/2022) 

Section 105-164 - Commercial & Industrial (aka Non-Residential) Subdivision Design 

Prior to making any street improvements or clearing or grading a site planned for development, 

installing any utilities or selling any parcels, the developer shall submit to the Director of 

Planning & Zoning for review and recommendation by the Planning Commission and review and 

final decision by the Board of Commissioners, a plat, showing any combination or subdivision of 

the proposed lot/s prepared in accordance with these Regulations.  



2 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

1. Pre-application review stage. 

Before the submission of any plats to the director of planning, the developer must 

submit a sketch plat showing the proposed development layout of the subdivision. 

The developer and director of planning should informally discuss what this chapter 

requires and what the developer proposes to do. This will assist the developer in 

preparing a residential subdivision plat that meet from the very beginning the intent 

and standards specified by this chapter so as to reduce undue time and expense in 

preparing plans that cannot be approved by the planning commission. 

 

2. Application Requirements: 

A. Submit seven (7) paper copies and one (1) digital copy of the Plat and 

supporting data.  

The Plat shall meet the minimum standards for plat preparation including, but 

not limited, to:  

1. General  

a. Name, address, and phone number of designer of subdivision  

    plat.  

b. Name, address, and phone number of developer of parcel.  

c. Date of plat preparation with space for revision dates.  

d. North point, identified as magnetic, true or grid. 

e. Minimum Graphic scale of one (1) inch equals 200 feet.  

f. Appropriate legend of symbols used on plat.  

g. List any conditions of zoning, rezoning, variance and date of  

    approval, if applicable.  

h. Certificates of Review of the Environmental Health Dept.  

   and/or Water Authority (as applicable). 

   2. Existing Conditions 

a. Zoning district of land to be subdivided and zoning  

    classification of adjoining properties. 

b. Exact boundary lines of the tract indicated by a heavy line  

    giving lengths and bearings. The boundary lines should  

    include the entire tract to be developed. Provide date and  

    source of survey. 

c. Location map showing the parent parcel in relation to the  

   surrounding area at a minimum scale of one inch to 2,000  

   feet. Include well-known landmarks such as railroads,  

   highways, bridges, creeks, etc. and city and/or county  

   jurisdictional boundaries and land lot lines, if applicable. 

d. Location of natural features including streams and  

   watercourses with direction of flow on the proposed project. 

e. Location and/or size of existing cultural features on or  

    adjacent to the proposed subdivision. 

f. Limits of 100-year floodplain. If none, note indicating such     

   with data source and date. 



3 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

g. Location and square footage of wetland areas. 

h. Note as to provision of water supply and sewer disposal. 

i. Existing sewers, water mains, drains, culverts, and other  

   underground facilities or utilities within easements or rights- 

   of-way on or within 300 feet of the tract to be subdivided, as  

   relevant. 

j. Adjoining property information, lot arrangement and/or  

   adjoining property owners’ names, rights-of-way and  

   easements within 300 feet of subdivision. 

k. Total acreage, minimum dwelling size and minimum lot size  

   of project. 

 

B. Commercial & Industrial Subdivisions on State Routes require GDOT 

comments to be submitted to the Planning Department of Planning & Zoning 

along with the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision (aka Final) Plat.  

 

C. A letter requesting review and approval of a Commercial & Industrial 

Subdivision plat and giving the name and address of a person to whom the 

notice of hearing and action on the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat 

is to be sent. 

 

D. Official date of submission. The official date of submission of the 

Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat will be the date of the next 

regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the planning commission that is more 

than 60 days following proper Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat 

submittal to the director of planning. 

 

E. The planning commission will review the Commercial & Industrial 

Subdivision plat for conformance to this chapter, the county zoning ordinance 

set forth in chapter 119, and other relevant regulations and will consider the 

comments or suggestions of other appropriate review agencies, persons, or 

entities in regard to the plat. The planning commission or director of planning 

will indicate on the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat, or by a written 

memorandum attached to the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat, any 

comments or suggested changes that are necessary to meet the intent of this 

chapter or to serve the best interests of the county. 

 

F. Public hearing. Before acting on the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision 

plat, the planning commission will hear public input on the plat. Notice of the 

hearing must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county 

at least 15 days before the hearing. 

 

G. Action of the Board of Commissioners. No more than 60 days after the 

official date of submission of the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat, 



4 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

the Board of Commissioners will either approve the plat, conditionally 

approve the plat (noting the conditions of approval on the plat), disapprove the 

plat, or table the plat for further consideration. Action may be taken on the 

entire Commercial & Industrial Subdivision plat or any portion of it. 

 

H. Failure of Board of Commissioners to act. If the Board of Commissioners 

fails to act within 90 days of the official date of submission of the Commercial 

& Industrial Subdivision plat, the plat will be deemed automatically approved 

by the Board of Commissioners. 

 

3. Approval of a Commercial & Industrial Subdivision Plat shall be deemed an 

expression of approval of the layout submitted, pending fulfillment of the requirements of 

these Regulations and the conditions of the Plat, if any.  

 

4. If the Commercial & Industrial Subdivision Plat is not recorded within 6 months 

of approval, the approval shall expire, unless a request for an extension of time has been 

submitted to and is subsequently approved by the Planning Commission in a public 

hearing. 

 

Sec. 119-245. - Same—Nonresidential districts.  

 O-I  C-1  C-2  M  

Maximum floor area per building  10,000  4,000  60,000  Unlimited  

Minimum lot area  

 Unsewered area  1.2 acres  1.2 acres  1.2 acres  1.2 acres  

 Sewered or water  10,000 sq. ft.  5,000 sq. ft.  1.2 acres  1.2 acres  

Minimum lot width  40'  40'  80'  100'  

Minimum road frontage****  40'  40'  80'  100'  

Minimum front yard  

 Arterial roads  80'  80'  80'  100'  

 Major collector  60'  60'  80'  100'  

 Minor collector  30'  30'  60'  60'  



5 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

 Local roads  20'  20'  50'  50'  

Minimum side yard  10'  10'  10'  10'  

Minimum rear yard  20'  20'  20'  20'  

Compliance with architectural standards required?  No  No  Yes  No  

 

Staff Analysis, Comments & Recommendations: 
 

The request is to divide the property into 10 tracts with a new road shown as Southland Parkway 

on the Preliminary Plat.  Southland Parkway will have access on both Edwards Road and Hwy 

83.  The road itself shows a 60 foot right of way and a 30-foot road bed.  The road design allows 

for a “knuckle” or “partial” cul-de-sac where the interior road turns which provides more road 

frontage for lots 7 & 8.   
 

The portion of the property that abuts Edwards Road has an existing entrance to the property; 

however, for the purpose of new road frontage, the applicant has proposed as well as the county 

will require improvements to the existing driveway’s roadbed. 
 

Staff also notes that neither entrance to the new parkway show a deceleration lane.  While GDOT 

will control the requirements of Hwy 83 which is indicated as “phase 2” of the development, 

Jasper County regulates Edwards Road and has the right to suggest, recommend or condition 

additional requirements for ingress and egress for the site.  
 

At this time, there are no driveways shown for the new tracts, however, tracts 1, 4 & 5 also have 

external road frontage.  Due to this staff does recommend requiring all driveways be accessed 

from the new road currently shown as Southland Parkway and not allowing for any new driveway 

to be cut from Edwards Road or Hwy 83.  
 

Setbacks for each lot meet the requirements. 
 

Due to the division of the property showing a new road to be installed, the project will require a 

Development Land Disturbance Permit, ES & PC plans approved by the state, an approved 

GDOT Permit for the curb cut onto Hwy 83. 
 

Under NOTES on the plat the following language is noted and does need to be further discussed: 
 

BEFORE PHASE 2 CAN BE CONSTRUCTED, AS SHOWN, THE GEORGIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION MUST APPROVE AND ACCEPT THE 

PROPOSED DRIVE ON GA HWY 83. Staff Comment: Due to the project being proposed as 2 

phases and approval from GDOT is not provided at this time, Staff recommends each phase of 

the project come back before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners for Final 

Plat approval once each phase completes the Development Land Disturbance Permit portion to 

show which lots are being requested for approval to record. 

 



6 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

Staff further notes that while there is language that the project will be in 2 phases, there is no 

indication on the Preliminary Plat as to what lots would be part of Phase 1 which will come off 

of Edwards Road (a county road) and what lots would be part of Phase 2.  Staff cautions the 

Boards prior to final approval to be clear on which lots or acreage will be phased as to prevent 

the project from only accessing off the county road without necessary improvements to the 

county road to handle additional traffic.   
 

LOTS SIZES SHOWN ARE CONCEPTUAL; FINAL LOT SIZES WILL BE DETERMINED 

BY END USER. FINAL LOT SIZES MUST CONFORM TO JASPER COUNTY ZONING 

AND HEALTH DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. Staff Comment: While it is certainly 

reasonable for a project to need some ability to modify based on an end user’s need for land 

space, staff recommends that once the infrastructure, including but not limited to the new street, 

is installed and the applicant is ready to submit a Final Plat to come back before the Planning 

Commission and the Board of Commissioners to record, that the maximum number of lots under 

any further reconfiguration that varies from the Final Plat, that the number of lots be firmly set 

with a limit unless brought back before the respective Boards to be amended. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning Commission did recommend stipulations for the approval which include: 

1. The total number of lots not exceed 10 

2. To correct the front setback language of Lot #9 from 20’ to 50’ as shown. 

3. Add language in the transitional buffers to state “Undisturbed Buffer” 

4. Show the tentative detention/storm ponds and utilities on the plat for the BOC meeting. 

5. To include Sec. 105-222 of the Development Regulations as applicable. 

 

Comments 1-4 above have been corrected and added to the Preliminary Plat shown on page 12 of 

the staff report.  Sec. 105-222 in comment 5 above is applicable as determined by the county 

department of transportation (shown below); however, staff encourages the Board to weigh 

requiring a deceleration lane on Edwards Road for the project to lesson traffic congestion rather 

than requiring a curb and gutter expanded road bed starting approximately 320 feet off Hwy 83 

for only 487.57 feet of Edwards Rd (which is what is owned by the applicant and applicable to 

the standard).  Edwards Road is approximately 1 mile (5,280 ft) in length and is an open ditch 

road.  By applying the standards of Table 105-221.2, it would only improve a limited amount of 

the existing road (less than 0.1 mile) and create conflict with the existing road going both north 

and south not owned by the applicant or required to be improved.   

Sec. 105-222. - Improvements to existing streets and rights-of-way for subdivisions. 

(b) Existing paved road. Any existing paved county road upon which a subdivision has 

frontage and/or access and which is deficient relative to county specifications (see Tables 105-

221.1 and 105-221.2) shall be resurfaced and widened as determined by the county department 

of transportation for the entire frontage of the subdivision. The minimum right-of-way required 

according to Table 105-221.1 shall be dedicated along the entire frontage of the subdivision. 

 

 

 

 



7 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 

 



8 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

 

APPLICANT INFO 

 

 



9 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

 

 

 

 



10 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

RECORDED ORIGINAL PLAT SHOWING THE TRACT WITH ALL 37.73 ACRES 

 



11 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

RECORDED PLAT SHOWING THE 18 ACRE TRACT SUBDIVIDED OUT 

 
 

 



12 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

UPDATED PRELIMINARY PLAT 4-26-2023 from Planning Board Comments 

 



13 

Planning Commission 4/20/2023 

BOC 05/01/2023 
 

Planning meeting draft proposal – DO NOT USE 

 



 

 

 

Public Hearing 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning & Zoning 
 
Date: May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: Discussion/consideration of enacting a Moratorium on the acceptance of Rezoning requests until 
the Future Land Use Map and Comp Plan are updated 
 
 
 
 
Summary:  
The Planning Commission is recommending the Board adopt a Moratorium on the acceptance of Rezoning 
requests until the Comp Plan and Future Land Use Map have been updated.  These items should be completed 
by October 31, 2023. 
 
 
 
Background:  
The Planning Commission Board at their meeting on April 20, 2023 discussed the need for a Moratorium on 
Rezoning requests until the Comprehensive Plan, including the Future Land Use Map, was completed.  The 
Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on the matter as well as there was an Advertisement placed in the 
Monticello News regarding the Moratorium. By a Vote of 5-0 the Planning Commission recommended the 
Board of Commissioners adopt the Moratorium. 
 
Cost:  
Legal Advertisement cost for Public Hearing requirement 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  N/A 
 
 

  



A   RESOLUTION   OF   THE   JASPER   COUNTY   BOARD   OF   COMMISSIONERS 
TO IMPOSE A MORATORIUM ON COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL RE-ZONING 
APPLICATIONS FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) 
DAYS WHILE THE COUNTY COMPLETES ITS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 
AND ADOPTS AN UPDATED FUTURE LAND USE MAP. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners have been reviewing the County’s 

Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map as part of preparing for the county’s growth 
management.   

 
WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners have a sincere interest to manage 

growth in an orderly and predictable manner as to buffer the least amount of disturbance to the 
citizens and landowners of Jasper County while promoting the health, safety, morals, convenience, 
order, prosperity and the general welfare of present and future inhabitants of the county; of 
lessening congestion in the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers; to provide 
adequate light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of 
population; to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and 
other public requirements. 

 
WHEREAS, the Jasper County Board of Commissioners have engaged a Steering 

Committee, county staff and the professional planning office of Northeast Georgia Regional 
Commission to complete the public process of updating the Comprehensive Plan which includes the 
Future Land Use Map by October 31, 2023. 

 
WHEREAS, Part II of the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 entitled Zoning (“Zoning 

Ordinance”), Article I., establishes the comprehensive land use plan has been enacted for the 
following purposes: to control, guide and direct development in the county; to protect, preserve and 
enhance the county's cultural, environmental, economic and social resources; to identify current land 
uses in order to assist the county in making decisions regarding budgets, finances, utilities and other 
resources; to enable the county to predict future land uses for planning purposes; to stabilize the 
land uses in the county; to assist in fulfilling the purposes of the county's zoning regulations; to assist 
the county in fulfilling its statutory and other legal obligations; and to provide a public document 
which will serve as a means of general information on land use and development for the citizens of 
the county. 

 
WHEREAS, Part II of the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 119 entitled Zoning (“Zoning 

Ordinance”), Article II., ties the boundaries of the various land use districts shown upon the map 
contained in the comprehensive plan designated as the future land use map; and furthers the 
consistency between land use plan and zoning map amendments stating no amendment to the 
zoning map shall be permitted or shall take effect unless the zoning district is permitted within the 
comprehensive land use district shown in section 119-95 that is the subject of the proposed zoning 
map amendment.  

 
WHEREAS, recent development trends in the County suggest that current trends for 

development may not be adequately addressed by the current Comprehensive Plan and the Future 
Land Use Map; and 
 



WHEREAS, the Supreme Court has held that a moratorium with respect to application 
of a Zoning Ordinance may be put in place for a reasonable period of time without the necessity 
of complying with notice requirements of the Georgia Zoning Procedures Law ("ZPL"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board will conduct a properly noticed public hearing on May 1, 
2023, to consider enacting a Moratorium; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Jasper 
County, Georgia as follows: 
 
 
1. The Jasper County Board of Commissioners does hereby enact a moratorium barring until 
November 1, 2023, the acceptance of applications for Rezoning Petitions. 
 
2. The moratorium imposed by this Resolution shall terminate on the earliest date of (1) November 
1, 2023 at 11:59 p.m.; or (2) the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan update and Future Land Use 
Map. 
 
3. This Resolution shall be effective upon a majority vote by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
 
So resolved this 1st day of May 2023, the public's health, safety and welfare demanding it. 
 
 
 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, County Clerk 



 

 
 
Business Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  RES23-001 – Approval for an Agricultural Plat that has more than 3 lots – Cook Road 
 
Summary:  Request approval of RES23-001 located off of Cook Road, Map & Parcel 026 054 002.  The 

request is to approve the division of land for a total of 19 lots on 288.707 acres.  The property is 
zoned AG and the lots will abut existing road frontage. 

 
Background:  The request is to divide the property into 19 agricultural tracts.  

 
The Planning Commission did recommend stipulations for the approval (vote of 3-2) to include: 
1. Owner to present a plan to be approved by the Planning & Zoning Office and the Public 

Works Department for the use of the road, Cook Road, during construction. 
2. Owner to improve by grading and graveling the existing road frontage along their property 

and to work with the Public Works Department for specifications. 
3. For the Board of Commissioners to decide if they want to acquire actual road frontage along 

Cook Road from the owner on this strip of land as the road is currently a prescriptive 
easement. 

 
 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Given the Plat meets the requirements of the AG (Agricultural) Zoning District, 

Staff recommends approval of the division of land with the Planning 
Commission’s stipulations of #1 & #2 as shown above and vetted by legal; 
however, staff does not recommend acquiring right of way for this project due to 
the fact that overall there would be a minimal amount of county owned right of 
way on an existing prescriptive easement road for it to benefit the county. 

 

  



 

 

Business Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  RES23-002 – Approval for an Agricultural Plat that has more than 3 lots – Millen Road 
 
Summary:  Request approval of RES23-002, Hardy Creek Estates, located off of Millen Road, Map & Parcel 

026 054 004.  The request is to approve the division of land for a total of 11 lots on 152.06 acres. 
The property is zoned AG and the lots will abut existing road frontage. 

 
Background:  The request is to divide the property into 10 agricultural tracts.  

 
The Planning Commission did recommend stipulations for the approval to include: 
4. Owner to present a plan to be approved by the Planning & Zoning Office and the Public 

Works Department for the use of the road, Millen Road, during construction. 
5. Owner to improve by grading and graveling the existing road frontage along their property 

and to work with the Public Works Department for specifications. 
6. For the Board of Commissioners to decide if they want to acquire actual road frontage along 

Cook Road from the owner on this strip of land as the road is currently a prescriptive 
easement. 

 
The motion to approve this petition did not pass the Planning Commission due to concerns over 
the requested improvements to Millen Road along the frontage owned by the applicant and the 
applicant not agreeing at the time of the meeting.  However, the applicant has since agreed to the 
grading and graveling of the area.  This is updated in the packet. 

 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Given the Plat meets the requirements of the AG (Agricultural) Zoning District, 

Staff recommends approval of the division of land with the Planning 
Commission’s stipulations of #1 & #2 as shown above and as vetted by legal; 
however, staff does not recommend acquiring right of way for this project due to 
the fact that overall there would be a minimal amount of county owned right of 
way on an existing prescriptive easement road for it to benefit the county. 

 

  



 

 

Business Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  PPT23-001 – Approval for Preliminary Plat for AC Business Park 
 
Summary:  A Public Hearing will be held for an Industrial/Commercial Preliminary Plat located at the NNW 

intersection of Hwy 83 S and Edwards Road, Map & Parcel 040 010X and 039A 029.  The 
request is for a total of 10 lots on 35.72 acres. 

 
Background:  The request is to divide the property into 10 tracts with a new road shown as Southland  

Parkway on the Preliminary Plat.  Southland Parkway will have access on both Edwards Road 
and Hwy 83. 
 
The Planning Commission did recommend stipulations for the approval which include: 
1. The total number of lots not exceed 10 
2. To correct the front setback language of Lot #9 from 20’ to 50’ as shown. 
3. Add language in the transitional buffers to state “Undisturbed Buffer” 
4. Show the tentative detention/storm ponds and utilities on the plat for the BOC meeting. 
5. To include Sec. 105-222 of the Development Regulations as applicable. 

 
 
 
Cost:    Required legal advertisement only 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Given the Planning Commission recommended approval (5-0, with stipulations) 

unanimously for the Preliminary Plat, Staff recommends approval with the 
stipulations listed above. 

 

  



 

 

 

Business Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning & Zoning 
 
Date: May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: Discussion/consideration of enacting a Moratorium on the acceptance of Rezoning requests until the 
Future Land Use Map and Comp Plan are updated 
 
 
Summary:  
The Planning Commission is recommending the Board adopt a Moratorium on the acceptance of Rezoning 
requests until the Comp Plan and Future Land Use Map have been updated.  These items should be completed 
by October 31, 2023. 
 
 
Background:  
The Planning Commission Board at their meeting on April 20, 2023 discussed the need for a Moratorium on 
Rezoning requests until the Comprehensive Plan, including the Future Land Use Map, was completed.  The 
Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on the matter as well as there was an Advertisement placed in the 
Monticello News regarding the Moratorium. By a Vote of 5-0 the Planning Commission recommended the 
Board of Commissioners adopt the Moratorium. 
 
Cost:  
Legal Advertisement cost for Public Hearing requirement 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board’s Discretion. 
 
  



 

 

Business Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Sheriff’s Office/Jail 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: Sheriff’s Office/Jail Project – Proposals for Construction Materials Testing and Special   
 Inspection Services 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Received Two Proposals 
 
     Services Cost    NPDES Monitoring 
 
Nova Engineering and Env  $33,554.00    $8910.00    
         54 weeks x $165.00 
 
United Consulting   $41,645    $16,200.00 
          54 weeks x $300.00   
  
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
Based on contractor 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve proposal from Nova Engineering and Environmental for construction materials testing and special 
inspection services 
  

















































 

 

Business Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: GDOT Low Impact Bridge Program – Application for Cook Rd Bridge, River Rd Bridge   
  and Guy Jones Rd Bridge  
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Discuss bridge submissions to GDOT’s Low Impact Bridge Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
GDOT LIBP – Low Impact Bridge Program 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
  



























 

 

Business Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: Pittman Construction Contract Modification – Commercial Asphalt Patching on    
 County Line Rd and Hodges Farm Rd 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Staff is requesting to add additional scope to Pittman Construction’s contract to include commercial asphalt 
patching for certain sections of County Line Rd and Hodges Farm Rd. 
 
Staff is requesting approval to obtain cost from Pittman Construction for certain sections of County Line Rd and 
Hodges Farm Rd. 
 
Staff will present cost information obtained from Pittman Construction for BOC approval consideration. 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
Pittman Construction was low bid and was awarded the paving project in the 2022/2023 LMIG Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
  



 

 

 

Business Item 8: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Executive / Finance  
 
Date:  May 1, 2023 
Subject:  Azalea Regional Library – Impact Fee 
 
 
 
 
Summary:                                                                                                                                                          
Staff is seeking approval to distribute impact fee allocation collected as of 6.30.2022 for Azalea Regional 
Library. 

     
 
Background:                                                                                                                                                                 
Azalea Regional Library currently receives a 2% allocation from every impact fee the county collects.  The 
library’s audited impact fee balance at 6.30.2022 is $14,531.20 
 
 
Cost: 
None    
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                     
Approve distribution of Impact Fee Funds Allocation of $14,531.20 to the Azalea Regional Library. 

 
 
 
  





 

 

Business Item 9: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Intergovernmental Agreement with City of Monticello – Sands Drive Park Improvements 
   
 
 
Summary:  
 
 
Sands Dr Park Improvements Cost Estimates 
 
Pavilion Shelter Top -   $19,000 
Six Commercial Picnic Tables -  $  8820 
Three Commercial Park Benches -  $  3171 
Total estimate    $30,991 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
At the August 1, 2022 meeting, the BOC approved constructing a pavilion shelter top, six commercial picnic 
tables and three commercial park benches to be located at Sands Drive Park, to be funded by Impact Fees, 
provided the BOC and the Monticello City Council enter into an intergovernmental agreement with certain 
provisions. 
 
 
 
Cost:   
Estimated cost - $30,991 
To be funded by Impact Fees 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Authorize Chairman to sign intergovernmental agreement with the Monticello City Council for park 
improvements for Sands Dr Park as presented. 
  



 

1 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA )  

)                       USE OF FACILITIES 

COUNTY OF JASPER  )     INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 

 

This Use of Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement, made this _____ day of 

_______________, 2023, by and between the City of Monticello, Georgia (hereinafter called 

"City"), and the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, (hereinafter called "County"); 

 

WHEREAS, the City owns and operates a facility referred to as the Sands Drive Park, 

located within the incorporated city limits of Monticello; and 

 

WHEREAS, County desires, in exchange for non-exclusive use of the facility, to provide 

funds for constructing a 36’ x 40’ pavilion and purchase of three commercial grade park benches 

and six commercial grade picnic tables;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following terms concerning improvement to 

and the use of the Sands Drive Park: 

 

1. TERM 

 

 This Agreement shall be effective for a term of 50 years, unless otherwise amended by the 

parties. 

 

2.  OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY:   

 

County allocated the amount of $30,991.00 (_Thirty Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety One 

DOLLARS and 00/100 CENTS), final cost to be determined by the bid process, for certain 

improvements to the Sands Drive Park to be undertaken by or at direction of the County, following 

written approval by the City, to be limited to the following: 

 

a. constructing a 36’ x 40’ pavilion 

b. purchasing three commercial grade park benches; and  

c. purchasing six commercial grade picnic tables. 

 

Such improvements or appurtenances shall be completed or placed by the county with ________ 

days of execution of this Agreement. 

 

2.  OBLIGATIONS OF CITY: 

 

a. City shall maintain liability and ongoing maintenance to Sands Drive Park.  City further 

acknowledges County shall be relieved of any and all obligation to maintain or provide any 

additional funding for support of Sands Drive Park. 

b. City agrees to hold and save County harmless from any loss, liability, demand or claim of 



 

2 

 

any kind or nature for injury to persons or property, as a result of County’s activities 

undertaken at Sands Drive Park, transfer of ownership of any equipment or appurtenance, 

and/or the use of any such equipment or appurtenance by any person or entity, as well as 

the use by any person or entity of Sands Drive Park at any time during the term of this 

Agreement, unless the loss suffered is the direct and sole result of any act by the County, 

their agents, employees, heirs or assigns. 

     

3.   APPLICABLE LAW:   

 

This agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Georgia.  Any action, suit or proceeding relating to, arising out of, or in connection 

with this agreement may be brought by any party hereto against any other party hereto in the 

superior court in Glascock County, Georgia.  All parties hereby waive any objection to jurisdiction 

or venue in any such proceeding before said courts. 

 

4.  NOTICES: 

 

 Any notice provided pursuant to this agreement shall be made to the following individuals: 

 

  City 
   

  DeAshley R. Thurman, Mayor  

  Post Office Box 269 

  Monticello, GA 31064-0269 

 

  County 
              

  Don Jernigan, Chairman 

  126 West Greene Street 

  Suite 18 

  Monticello, GA 31064 

 

5.  SEVERABILITY: 

 

 If any provision or portion of a provision of this Agreement is deemed unenforceable, the 

remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties herein have hereunto set their hands and seals, the 

day and year first above written. 

 

       

 

 

 



 

3 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

CITY OF MONTICELLO, GEORGIA,  

 

 

      By:         

   As its: Mayor  

   

      Attest:        

   As its: Clerk 

  

 

 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF  

COMMISSIONERS  

 

 

 

By:         

         As its: Chairman 

 

       Attest:        

    As its: Clerk 

  

 



 

 

Business Item 10: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Jasper County Fire Rescue 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: Jasper County Fire Rescue – Car 3 Replacement 
 
 
Summary: Jasper County Fire Rescue is requesting to purchase a new vehicle to replace the current 2008 Ford 
F150 single cab truck with a truck with increased capabilities for mission critical operations.  
 
 
 
Background: Jasper County Fire Rescue’s Car 3, a 2008 Ford F150 single cab is currently in the shop requiring 
a new motor. This truck is 15 years old with 143, 869 miles and estimated engine replacement cost of $ 
7,836.38. Should be noted the vehicle is in poor mechanical shape in regards to suspension, other repairs are 
needed and does not have towing capabilities to meet our operations. This vehicle is used in many different 
operations such as emergency response (QRV), day to day operations and specialty operations. (Ex. Towing 
hazmat operations trailer as part of Hazard Mitigation Plan, towing our side by side for heavy terrain operations, 
can trailers and other equipment) 
 
Should be noted there will be an extra monies required to upfit the vehicle for operations such as emergency 
lights, siren, brush guard and etc. Unable to give exact cost since it depends on vehicle chosen. (Estimate $ 
7,000 to $ 10,000 to upfit)  
 
 
Cost:  Jasper County Fire Rescue has received 3 quotes. 
 
Quote 1: Mathews Family Dealerships 
 2022 Ram 2500 4*4 with utility bed      Cost - $65,755.00 
 
Quote 2: Gaiers Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram 
 2022 Ram 2500 4*4 normal bed      Cost - $54,070.00 
 
Quote 3: Freedom Ford Wise 
 2022 Ford Super Duty F250 SRW 4*4     Cost - $58,761.29 
  
Potential Funding Sources: 
Available Impact Fees -  $106,246 
ARPA Fund -    $530,383 
General Fund Fund Balance 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  
  





























 

 

Business Item 11: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Jasper County Fire Rescue 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
Subject: Jasper County Fire Rescue – Lawn Mower Purchase 
 
 
Summary: Jasper County Fire Rescue is requesting to purchase a new 60” cut commercial grade lawn mower 
to maintain yards of our Fire Stations.  
 
 
 
Background: Jasper County Fire Rescue has 7 Fire Stations located throughout the county with 6 Fire Stations 
requiring grass cutting. City of Shady Dale maintains the yard at Station 2. Jasper County Fire Rescue currently 
does not have a lawn mower.  
 
 
 
 
Cost:  Jasper County Fire Rescue has received 3 quotes. 
 
Quote 1: Jasper County Small Engine 
 Ferris ISX 800 27 HP 60” Cut - Model #5902075        Cost - $8,900.00 
 
Quote 2: Hays Tractor and Equipment 
 Commercial ZTR MWR 25.5 HP 60” Cut – Model # Z726KW-3-60 Cost - $11,349.00 
 
Quote 3: John Deere AG-Pro 
 John Deere Z950M ZTrak 27 HP 60” Cut Model #FX850V   Cost - $12,085.00 
  
Potential Funding Sources: 
Available Impact Fees -  $106,246 
ARPA Fund -    $530,383 
General Fund Fund Balance 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  
 

 

 

  

































































Business Item 12: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Finance  
 
Date:  May 1, 2023 
 
Subject:  FY 2023 3rd Quarter Financial Report 
 
 
 
 
Summary:                                                                                                                                                          
Staff will present a Financial Report for 3rd Quarter FY2023. 

     
 
Background:                                                                                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
None    
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:                                                                                                                                    
None Required 
  



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2023 3RD QUARTER

FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2023

 
FUND FY 2023 FY 2023 % %

# BUDGET ACTUAL COLLECTED REMAINING

100 GENERAL FUND - 
LINE # REVENUE

1 ADVALOREM PROPERTY TAX 6,882,487$       6,906,364$     100.3% -0.3%
2 VEHICLE & MOBILE HOME TAX 1,141,100$       935,521$        82.0% 18.0%
3 PRIOR YEARS TAX 212,500$          138,777$        65.3% 34.7%
4 FOREST LAND PROTECTION GRANT 382,932$          383,556$        100.2% -0.2%
5 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 1,125,000$       867,547$        77.1% 22.9%
6 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 861,000$          935,863$        108.7% -8.7%
7 TAX COMISSIONER COMMISSION 245,000$          255,889$        104.4% -4.4%
8 TIMBER TAX 35,000$             29,811$           85.2% 14.8%
9 RAILROAD TAX 33,000$             -$                      0.0% 100.0%

10 REAL ESTATE TRANFER TAX 80,000$             45,396$           56.7% 43.3%
11 INTANGIBLE TAX 235,000$          139,602$        59.4% 40.6%
12 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX 68,000$             46,773$           68.8% 31.2%
13 BUSINESS LICENSE TAX 26,000$             27,113$           104.3% -4.3%
14 ENERGY EXCISE TAX 12,000$             20,976$           174.8% -74.8%
15 OTHER TAXES 2,400$               759$                31.6% 68.4%
16 PENALTIES & INTEREST 86,000$             62,564$           72.7% 27.3%
17 EMS 426,632$          401,565$        94.1% 5.9%
18 PROBATE COURT 170,000$          164,990$        97.1% 2.9%
19 SUPERIOR COURT 190,000$          125,580$        66.1% 33.9%
20 SHERIFF 39,000$             -$                      0.0% 100.0%
21 JAIL 13,000$             10,750$           82.7% 17.3%
22 RECREATION 85,500$             61,350$           71.8% 28.2%
23 PLANNING & ZONING 245,000$          234,168$        95.6% 4.4%
24 EMA 7,355$               -$                      0.0% 100.0%
25 ANIMAL CONTROL 2,500$               1,598$             63.9% 36.1%
26 FIRE DISTRICT - JCWSA 46,500$             47,045$           101.2% -1.2%
27 FOREST WILDLIFE GRANT 30,000$             -$                      0.0% 100.0%
28 INTEREST 7,000$               69,646$           994.9% -894.9%
29 FAMILY CONNECTION GRANT -$                        33,404$           
30 OTHER REVENUE 32,261$             129,439$        401.2% -301.2%
31 SENIOR CENTER 163,757$          135,535$        82.8% 17.2%
32 HOTEL TAX 50% -$                        8,200$             
33 TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 12,885,924$    12,219,779$   94.8% 5.2%

FY 2023 FY 2023 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
34 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,192,513$       1,692,899$     77.2% 22.8%
35 200 JUDICIAL 939,676$          679,214$        72.3% 27.7%
36 300 PUBLIC SAFETY 5,591,690$       4,233,631$     75.7% 24.3%
37 400 PUBLIC WORKS 2,567,565$       2,065,817$     80.5% 19.5%
38 600 CULTURE/RECREATION 677,212$          521,509$        77.0% 23.0%
39 700 HOUSING & DEVELOPMENT 441,349$          306,563$        69.5% 30.5%
40 900 APPROPRIATIONS 336,171$          316,758$        94.2% 5.8%
41 950 COMPONENT UNITS 824,858$          618,643$        75.0% 25.0%
42 TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 13,571,034$    10,435,036$   76.9% 23.1%



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2023 3RD QUARTER 

FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2023

FY 2023 FY 2023 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
LINE # 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT-

43 01110 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 304,536$      274,137$        90.0% 10.0%
44 01300 EXECUTIVE 250,939$      199,971$        79.7% 20.3%
45 01400 ELECTIONS 38,284$        35,613$          93.0% 7.0%
46 01401 REGISTRAR 79,220$        68,687$          86.7% 13.3%
47 01510 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 247,022$      177,976$        72.0% 28.0%
48 01540 HUMAN RESOURCES 97,574$        62,862$          64.4% 35.6%
49 01545 TAX COMMISSIONER 262,331$      192,497$        73.4% 26.6%
50 01150 TAX ASSESSOR 335,740$      263,007$        78.3% 21.7%
51 01565 GOV'T BUILDINGS 183,100$      130,273$        71.1% 28.9%
52 80000 DEBT SERVICE 393,767$      287,876$        73.1% 26.9%
53 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,192,513$  1,692,899$     77.2% 22.8%

200 JUDICIAL-
54 02150 SUPERIOR COURT 407,940$      290,894$        71.3% 28.7%
55 02200 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 58,294$        40,963$          70.3% 29.7%
56 02400 MAGISTRATE COURT 143,763$      110,946$        77.2% 22.8%
57 02450 PROBATE COURT 207,153$      147,133$        71.0% 29.0%
58 02600 JUVENILE COURT 4,000$          2,476$             61.9% 38.1%
59 03100 COURTS: OTHER COSTS 118,526$      86,803$          73.2% 26.8%
60 TOTAL JUDICIAL 939,676$      679,214$        72.3% 27.7%

300 PUBLIC SAFETY-
61 03300 SHERIFF 2,726,559$  1,954,643$     71.7% 28.3%
62 03326 JAIL 1,106,822$  899,504$        81.3% 18.7%
63 03360 COURTHOUSE SECURITY 120,368$      92,201$          76.6% 23.4%
64 03550 FIRE RESCUE 1,426,756$  1,041,663$     73.0% 27.0%
65 03700 CORONER 32,260$        18,341$          56.9% 43.1%
66 03900 ANIMAL CONTROL 163,626$      113,831$        69.6% 30.4%
67 03920 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 15,300$        113,448$        741.5% -641.5%
68 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 5,591,690$  4,233,631$     75.7% 24.3%

69 400 PUBLIC WORKS-ROADS AND BRIDGES 2,567,565$  2,065,817$     80.5% 19.5%

600 CULTURE/RECREATION-
70 06100 RECREATION- 355,323$      292,210$        82.2% 17.8%
71 06200 SENIOR CENTER 321,889$      229,300$        71.2% 28.8%
72 TOTAL CULTURE/RECREATION 677,212$      521,509$        77.0% 23.0%

700 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT-
73 07100 COUNTY EXTENSION SERVICE 111,638$      80,883$          72.5% 27.5%
74 07410 PLANNING AND ZONING 329,711$      225,680$        68.4% 31.6%
75 TOTAL HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT 441,349$      306,563$        69.5% 30.5%



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2023 3RD QUARTER 

FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2023

FY 2023 FY 2023 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
900 APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY-

76 572030 DEPT OF FAMILY AND CHILDRENS SERVICES 10,375$            7,781$                75.0% 25.0%
77 572060 CONSERVATION 3,000$               1,500$                50.0% 50.0%
78 572070 JC BOARD OF EDUCATION 34,000$            27,403$              80.6% 19.4%
79 572080 PUTNAM-JASPER SUPPORT SERVICES 5,760$               4,320$                75.0% 25.0%
80 572100 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY 97,260$            72,945$              75.0% 25.0%
81 572101 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY - 2% LOST 22,000$            17,351$              78.9% 21.1%
82 572110 GA FORESTRY 15,876$            15,876$              100.0% 0.0%
83 572179 FAMILY CONNECTION 8,500$               6,375$                75.0% 25.0%
84 572180 FAMILY CONNECTION 52,500$            33,404$              63.6% 36.4%
85 572190 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 44,000$            33,000$              75.0% 25.0%
86 573000 JCSWA 42,900$            42,900$              100.0% 0.0%
87 574000 CITY OF MONTICELLO EXCISE TAX* -$                       48,023$              
88 575000 CITY OF SHADY DALE EXCISE TAX** -$                       5,880$                
89 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY 336,171$          316,758$           94.2% 5.8%

950 COMPONENT UNITS-
90 611200 JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 71,361$            53,521$              75.0% 25.0%
91 611300 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 107,513$          80,635$              75.0% 25.0%
92 611400 E911 JOINT COUNTY AUTHORITY 511,171$          383,378$           75.0% 25.0%
93 612540 TRANSFER TO LANDFILL 148,915$          111,686$           75.0% 25.0%
94 618000 TRANSFER FROM CURBSIDE (14,102)$           (10,577)$            75.0% 25.0%
95 TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS 824,858$          618,643$           75.0% 25.0%

*City of Monticello Retroactive Payment amount of $45,832.77 paid on 12.8.22 per Intergovernmental Agreement dated November 14, 2012
**City of Shady Dale Retroactive Payment amount of $5,612.18 paid on 12.8.22 per Intergovernmental Agreement dated November 14, 2012 



 

 

 

Business Item 13: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 1, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
   
 
 
Summary:  
 
Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 

 

 

 


	MONTICELLO, GEORGIA
	*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page.

